
Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764626 
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - CABINET

Date & Time - Tuesday, 3 May 2016 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Cabinet:

Councillors: The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader), C N Worth (Deputy Leader), 
M G Chandler (Deputy Leader), A Casson, P E Coupland, R Gambba-Jones, C J Lawton, 
S-A Slade, G J Taylor. 

No substitutions permitted. Quorum 3.

Note: Cabinet reports may be referred to Council or Scrutiny Panels.  They 
should therefore be kept for future reference during the current 
committee cycle.  

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   25 April 2016

Public Document Pack

Page 1



A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence. 

2. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 22 March 2016 (copy enclosed).  

(Pages 
5 - 8)

3. Declarations of Interest. - (Where a Councillor has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must declare the interest to the 
meeting and leave the room without participating in any discussion or 
making a statement on the item, except where a Councillor is permitted 
to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation.)

4. Questions raised by the public under the Council's Constitution 
(Standing Orders). 

5. To consider any matters which have been subject to call-in. 

6. To consider matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels in accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules. 

7. SHDC Corporate Asbestos Policy 2016 - To present the revised SHDC 
Corporate Asbestos Policy 2016 for approval (report of the Portfolio 
Holder for Strategy, Governance and Public Protection and the 
Executive Director Commercialisation (S151) enclosed).

(Pages 
9 - 20)

8. Delivery of Extra Care Housing at Kings Road, Spalding - 
To seek support for the delivery of a dementia-friendly supported 
housing scheme consisting of 39 affordable apartments at Kings Road, 
Spalding (report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing and the Executive 
Director Commercialisation enclosed)

(Please note that appendix 5 associated with this report is not for 
publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 (Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the 
Local Government Act 1972, and is therefore attached to this 
agenda as Item 11.)

(Please note that Appendix 1 to this report is no longer available 
due to changes in Data Protection legislation).

(Pages 
21 - 66)

9. Any other items which the Leader decides are urgent. - 

Note: (i) No other business is permitted unless by reason of 
special circumstances, which shall be specified in the 
Minutes, the Leader is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of urgency.  

Page 2



(ii) Any urgent item of business that is a key decision must 
be dealt with in accordance with the Constitution’s 
Access to Information Procedure Rules.

10. To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 

11. Delivery of Extra Care Housing at Kings Road, Spalding - Appendix 5 - 
(enclosed).

(Pages 
67 - 68)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 32 -

Minutes of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 22 March 2016 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

C N Worth (Deputy Leader)
M G Chandler (Deputy Leader) 

A Casson
P E Coupland

R Gambba-Jones
C J Lawton

S-A Slade
G J Taylor

Cabinet Support 
Members: 

E J Sneath and A R Woolf.  

Chief Executive, Executive Manager – Governance, Corporate Improvement and 
Performance Manager, Client-Side Contracts Officer, Interim Chief Accountant and 
Principal Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Lord Porter of Spalding 
CBE (Leader), Councillor A M Newton (Independent Group Leader), Councillor  
M D Seymour (Chairman, Policy Development Panel) and Councillor R Boot 
(Community Representative, Parish Councils).

In Attendance:  Councillor B Alcock (Chairman, Performance Monitoring Panel) and 
Councillor G R Aley (Chairman, Governance and Audit Committee).

Action By
46. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2016 were 
signed as a correct record. 

47. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Item 11 – Procurement item

Councillor Worth informed the meeting that although he did not 
have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, in the interests of 
transparency he wished it to be recorded that he was a County 
Councillor, and member of the Executive. 

48. QUESTIONS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC UNDER THE  
          COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING ORDERS) 

No questions were raised under the Council’s Constitution 
(Standing Orders). 

49. MATTERS SUBJECT TO CALL-IN 

There were no matters subject to call in. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



- 33 -

CABINET - 22 March 2016

50. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND 
          PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANELS 

There were no matters arising from the Policy Development and 
Performance Monitoring Panels. 

51. COUNCIL TAX SECTION 13A POLICY 

Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder 
for Finance and the Executive Director Commercialisation (S151) 
which sought approval of a policy in respect of applications for 
discretionary reduction under Section 13A (1) (c) of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992.

It was noted that the Policy Development Panel had considered 
the draft Council Tax Section 13A Policy at its meeting on 9th 
March 2016 and had no comments for Cabinet.
 
DECISION:

That the Council Tax Section 13A Policy be approved.

(Other options considered:
 To approve the recommendation with amendments; or
 Not to approve the recommendation.
Reasons for decision:
 Having a Policy in place would ensure that the Council had a 

fair approach to dealing with applications for discretionary 
reduction in Council Tax, and the criteria to which regard 
would be given.

 The policy was designed to consider discretionary relief only in 
exceptional circumstances, and ensured through the decision 
making process that all reasonable steps had been taken to 
resolve personal situations, and that all other eligible 
reductions had been identified and awarded first.) 

SH 

52. COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT ANTI FRAUD POLICY 

Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder 
for Finance and the Executive Director Commercialisation (S151) 
which sought approval of the anti-fraud policy in relation to the 
Council Tax Support scheme.

DECISION:

That the Council Tax Support Anti-Fraud Policy be approved.

(Other options considered:

SH 

Page 6



- 34 -

CABINET - 22 March 2016

 To approve the recommendation with amendments; or
 Not to approve the recommendation.
Reasons for decision:
 To ensure that the Council was transparent and pro-active in 

its approach to tackling Council Tax Support fraud. This could 
act as a deterrent to potential fraudsters.) 

53. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE LEADER DECIDES ARE 
          URGENT 

There were no urgent items. 

54. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

DECISION:

That, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 3 of part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 

55. PROCUREMENT 

Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder 
for Legal, Performance and Democratic Services and the 
Executive Director Strategy and Governance which considered 
current and future delivery of procurement support to the Council.

Councillors discussed issues around service provision, and the 
potential for the Council to deliver this service in house.

It was noted that due to the timescales involved, this decision 
would be implemented before the expiration of the call-in period. 
The constitution allowed for this in urgent circumstances where 
the Access to Information Procedure Rules had been complied 
with; which they had in this case.

DECISION:

a) That notice be given before 31 March 2016 to end the 
current contract on 31 March 2017; and

b) That Procurement governance and day to day workloads be 
provided ‘in house’ by staff already in-post - the shared 
Client Side Contracts Officer and the Shared Corporate 
Improvement and Performance Manager.

(Other options considered:

GP, RS 

Page 7



- 35 -

CABINET - 22 March 2016

 To approve the recommendation with amendments; or
 Not to approve the recommendation.
Reasons for decision:
 Value for money and performance improvement, as detailed in 

the report.  

(The meeting ended at 6.55 pm)

(End of minutes)

These minutes are published on Thursday 24 March 2016.  In accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed above will, unless otherwise stated, 
come into force and may then be implemented on Tuesday 5 April 2016 (i.e. after the 
expiry of 5 working days from the date of publication of these minutes), unless during 
that period a notice which is signed by at least one member of the Council and 
complies with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution is served on the 
Executive Manager Governance requesting that the decision be called-in and the 
Executive Manager Governance approves the request for call-in.  Where a decision 
is called-in it will firstly be considered by the Performance Monitoring Panel on a date 
to be fixed.

Any FINAL DECISIONS and any URGENT DECISIONS take effect immediately.

Any RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL detailed above will be submitted for 
consideration to the meeting of the full Council on Wednesday 30 March 2016.

Page 8



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Governance and Public Protection and 
Executive Director Commercialisation (S151)

To: Cabinet  – 3 May 2016

(Author: Nick Kendrick - CPBS Health & Safety Advisor)

Subject: SHDC Corporate Asbestos Policy 2016

Purpose: To present the revised SHDC Corporate Asbestos Policy 2016 for approval

Recommendations: 

1) That the Cabinet considers and approves the report and revised Corporate Asbestos Policy 
2016.  

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The existing Corporate Asbestos Policy and Management Plan has been in place since 2013 
and given a number of changes in legislation, and changes in SHDC Management structure, 
it is in need of a complete review. Following a recent audit by an Asbestos Consultant it was 
felt appropriate that to separate the Policy from the Management Plan, which will now sit as a 
separate operation document, alongside individual premises management plans. This makes 
it easier to maintain.

1.2 Whilst the new policy has not yet been formally approved, officers are adhering to most 
elements of the new policy and have refined procedures accordingly. In order that all 
elements of the policy can be adhered to corporately, it is now necessary that the policy be 
formally approved.

1.3 The new policy is fundamentally different to the existing policy from 2013, and for this 
reason, a summary of the key changes is hard to provide.

1.4 The Policy is going to PDP on 26 April and any comments from the Panel will be advised at 
Cabinet. 

1.5 Please note that Appendix A of the Policy is not attached as this will be completed at a later 
date. This relates to roles and responsibilities and is an operational matter.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To consider and approve the report. 

2.2 To do nothing

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To ensure the Council operates in accordance with relevant legislation. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Should the revised policy be approved, upon implementation, the Council can be confident 
that its asbestos procedures are compliant with current legislation.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Staffing

5.1.1 Contractually, staff are required to comply with Council policies and will therefore be required 
to comply with the amended policy. The policy will provide new allocations of responsibilities 
to key individuals / appointed persons and supporting processes with ensure suitable 
training, information and guidance is given to staff.

5.2 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.2.1 It is considered that this report and its recommendations have no significant impact on the 
Council’s carbon footprint or environmental issues.

5.3 Constitution & Legal

5.3.1 The revised policy is compliant with current legislation. The main statutory provision placed 
on the Council comes under the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 and all associated 
legislation. 

5.3.2 This is an executive function and has been submitted to Cabinet for approval.

5.4 Contracts

5.4.1 The new policy does have an impact on how the Council will engage with external 
contractors where they are likely to encounter asbestos containing materials. However, as 
this has always been the case, it is considered that this report and its recommendations have 
no significant impact on the Council’s contracts.

5.5 Corporate Priorities

5.5.1 It is considered that this report and its recommendations have no significant impact on the 
Corporate Priorities.

5.6 Financial 

5.6.1 Asbestos management costs are included the planned maintenance budgets for the General 
Fund & the Housing Revenue Account.

5.6.2 General policy of non-disturbance of Asbestos containing materials is in place for all council 
buildings with specific removal costs chargeable to the repairs & renewals reserve as 
necessary.

5.6.3 Costs of the management plan including regular surveys are not currently separated in the 
budget and this is currently being reviewed to ensure the available budget is adequate to 
ensure compliance with this revised policy.  

Page 10



5.6.4 No removal costs have been incurred in 2015/16. Planned work in the boiler room for Priory 
Road offices is planned for 2016/17 and this will entail the removal of asbestos containing 
materials at an estimated cost of £2,500 which is included in the budget. Any additional costs 
incurred in buildings would need to be financed from corporate resources in the medium term

5.6.5 Council Dwellings have an asbestos register and non-disturbance of Asbestos containing 
materials is limited to external areas.

5.6.6 Removal of asbestos in main areas of each dwelling, e.g. Kitchen / Bathroom is carried out 
when properties are empty as this facilitates improvement works which are carried out on a 
rolling plan basis.

5.6.7 Planned maintenance costs of £300,000 for Asbestos management are included in the 
Housing revenue account and for each subsequent year of the current Medium Term 
Financial Plan. The operational plan is being reviewed to ensure compliance with the policy 
contained in this report.

5.7 Health & Wellbeing

5.7.1 With the changes to this policy it will result in improved health and wellbeing relevant to the 
management of Asbestos within the Council.

5.8 Reputation 

5.8.1 Provided all aspects of the policy, associated documents to the policy and current legislation 
(as detailed earlier) are followed it should not cause the Council reputational damage.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 The Council has a legal duty to have in place a robust and up-to-date Asbestos Policy, 
including a management plan, which sets a clear direction for the organisation to follow. The 
policy will help to manage asbestos related health and safety in the organisation and will let 
staff and others know about the organisation’s commitment to health and safety.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All Wards could be affected by this policy, particularly in respect of Council Housing stock.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 HSE Health & Safety Executive
ACMs Asbestos Containing Material
ACOP Approved Code of Practice
UKATA UK Asbestos Training Association
PMCSG  Property Management Compliance Sub Group

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Phil Adams
Telephone Number: 01775 764657
Email: Phillip.adams@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
Appendices attached to this report: Appendix A SHDC Asbestos Policy 2016

Page 11

%5CBCF01Democratic%20ServicesCommitteeCommitteeReport%20Guide2014THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


This page is intentionally left blank



   

Appendix A

South Holland District Council

Corporate Asbestos Policy 2016

Page 13



 
Contents

1. Policy Aims and Key Objectives
2. Introduction
3. Scope of Asbestos Policy
4. Duty to Manage
5. Duty Holders
6. Asbestos Surveying
7. Individual Asbestos Management Plans
8. Fly Tipped Asbestos
9. Asbestos database and risk assessment
10. Asbestos Training / Awareness
11. Procurement
12. Information Sharing
13. Home Improvement Applications
14. Asbestos Incidents
15. Asbestos Contractors
16. Labelling of Asbestos Containing Materials (ACMs)
17. Health Surveillance
18. Monitoring
19. Property Management Compliance Sub Group (PMCSG)
20. Corporate Risk Register

Page 14



Policy Statement

This policy is designed to provide a clear acknowledgement of the responsibilities that the Council 
has in relation to the management of asbestos and its approach to the management of asbestos 
within the properties it has responsibility for. 

1. Policy Aims and Key Objectives

1.1 The aims and objectives of this policy are summarised as follows:

 provides clear lines of responsibility within the Council for the management of asbestos;
 specifies individual responsibilities in the management of asbestos;
 clarifies the Council approach to surveying properties and;
 establishes the Property Management Compliance Sub Group (PMCSG) – which will 

review and monitor all areas of compliance for Asbestos, Legionella, Fire, Gas and 
Electricity.

2. Introduction

2.1 The Council recognises and accepts its responsibility as an employer for providing a safe 
and healthy workplace and work environment for its employees and others (contractors, 
visitors, tenants and the public) who may be affected by its work. 

2.2 The purpose of this document is to set out the Council’s policy for identifying and managing 
asbestos within its premises, to ensure that systems are in place when work is to be carried 
out to the structure or material, to ensure that systems are in place in the event of an 
emergency (uncontrolled release of asbestos fibres) and to demonstrate compliance with 
its legal obligations under health and safety legislation. This includes disseminating 
appropriate information to anyone who may disturb an asbestos containing material within a 
Council property, either deliberately or accidentally. In respect of domestic tenants this 
would take the form of a general information leaflet.

2.3 The objectives set out within this Policy are further expanded upon within the Council’s 
Asbestos Management Plan to provide a practical interpretation as to how the Council will 
undertake the management of asbestos within the properties it manages. 

2.4 It is a requirement that the Council, its employees, contractors and tenants take all 
reasonable steps to comply with the management systems defined in this document as well 
as the Asbestos Management Plan and related procedures. 

3. Scope of Asbestos Policy 

3.1 This policy applies to all properties within both the Council’s Corporate and Housing 
portfolios. It also covers fly tipped material that is suspected to contain Asbestos and needs 
to be dealt with by the Council.

3.2 The two portfolios include the following property types (but not limited to): 

Social Housing Properties 

 Houses
 Flats and flat blocks
 Maisonettes
 Bungalows
 Guest Rooms Page 15



 Sheltered housing units
 Community rooms
 Garages
 Sewerage treatment works and pumping stations

Corporate Properties

 Office buildings
 Leisure Centres
 Museums
 Pavilions
 Stores / Depots
 Commercial Properties
 Public Conveniences

3.3 As a waste collection authority the Council has a responsibility to clear fly tipped waste on 
public land. If a fly tip contains waste material that is suspected to contain Asbestos, the 
Council will appoint a suitably competent company in the removal of Asbestos Waste to 
undertake this task. 

3.4 The Council acknowledges and accepts its responsibilities under the Health and Safety at 
Work etc. Act 1974, and the Control of Asbestos Regulations (CAR) 2012 to identify and to 
safely manage Asbestos Containing Materials (ACMs) on its premises. Approved Codes of 
Practice and guidance information published by the Health and Safety Commission and 
Executive shall be taken as the adopted standard.

4. Duty to Manage
4.1 The duty to manage asbestos in Regulations 4 of the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 

usually rests with the person(s) in control of alterations, maintenance and repairs to non-
domestic premises, whether that is the occupier(s) or landlord, sub-lessor or managing 
agent. If no such obligation exists; e.g. where there is no tenancy agreement or contract, or 
where the premises is unoccupied, then the regulations place the duty on the person(s) in 
control of the premises, which is usually the owner/leaseholder. Throughout the 
Regulations, this person(s) is referred to as the “duty holder”. 

5. Duty Holders 

5.1 The Director of Place has the delegated responsibility for the management of asbestos 
within the buildings and estate controlled by the Council, and is the duty holder.

5.2 It is the duty of Council staff as well as its contractors to ensure this policy is fully 
implemented. 

5.3 The Council officers listed below have regular and direct control/responsibilities over the 
management of asbestos matters in respect of both Corporate and Social Housing (as 
applicable) properties within the Council’s: 

Chief Executive
SHDC Corporate Properties SHDC Housing Properties

Executive Director Place Executive Director Place
Executive Public Protection Manager Executive Public Protection Manager
SHDC Place Manager SHDC Place Manager
Appointed Persons Appointed Persons

5.3 Whilst not having direct responsibilities for managing asbestos, officers and teams will be 
visiting Council properties and will consequently have a role in practically assisting with the 
management of asbestos containing materials (ACMs). Any officer determined through their 
role will therefore receive Asbestos Awareness training on an annual basis.Page 16



5.4 Further detail regarding duty holders’ / responsible persons’ roles and responsibilities can 
be found as part of Appendix 1.

Council staff asbestos training Matrix (including repeat cycles) is detailed within the 
Council’s Asbestos Management Plan.

5.5 The Duty to Manage fly tipped materials is held by Environmental Services under the Place 
Directorate.

6. Asbestos Surveying

6.1 The first step in managing the risk from ACMs is to undertake a suitable and sufficient 
assessment as to the presence of ACMs, their location, asbestos fibre content, product 
type, and condition (i.e. material assessment) together with an assessment of the risk of 
that material to cause harm based on accessibility and the activities carried out in the area 
around the ACM (i.e. a Priority Assessment).

6.2 The Council undertakes to provide a ‘Management’ (non-invasive) survey of every property 
within the Corporate Portfolios.

6.3 ‘Refurbishment & Demolition’ (invasive) surveys will be carried out to those parts of any 
building where refurbishment (or demolition) works are proposed. 

6.4 Re-inspections of identified ACMs will be carried out at regular intervals as directed by the 
relevant duty holder / responsible person and in compliance with the Council’s re-inspection 
protocol, based on a risk assessment approach as detailed in the Council’s Asbestos 
Management Plan.  Irrespective, all materials within communal (non-domestic) areas will be 
re-inspected annually. It is the intention, therefore, that changes in the condition of ACMs 
and thereby potential changes in risk will be identified through this process.

7. Individual Asbestos Management Plans

7.1 The actions required to manage the ACMs within an individual building (the ‘Asbestos 
Management Plans’) will be informed by the asbestos survey and associated 
recommendations provided. The plan will identify the risk and prioritise actions in individual 
properties (i.e. removal / encapsulate / label / re-inspect).

7.2 As per the requirements of Regulation 4 of the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012, 
supported by the Health & Safety Executive (HSE) ACOP L143 Managing and Working with 
Asbestos, all management plans will be reviewed annually. 

8. Fly Tipped Asbestos

8.1 The Council is responsible for investigating and clearing up small scale fly tipping on public 
land. 

8.2 Where materials are suspected to contain asbestos, a licensed and suitably competent 
contractor will be employed to remove all materials as the entire fly tip will now be deemed 
to be contaminated.

8.3 Responsibility for the safe removal and disposal of this material will remain the 
responsibility of the Council.

9. Asbestos database and Risk Assessment

Page 17



9.1 The asbestos Database is common to both Corporate and Housing properties and is stored 
in an electronic format accessible by staff and contractors, and is maintained by the Place 
based Directorate.

9.2 Staff and contractors must utilise the information in the asbestos database before carrying 
out works, in order to inform their risk assessment.

9.3 Where no asbestos database information can be made available to staff or contractors (i.e. 
some responsive repairs works) the staff or contractors will carry out a further risk 
assessment, to include the potential risk from ACMs, before starting any works. The result 
of the risk assessment will determine the next course of action. Risk Assessments must be 
recorded in an approved form and made available for review and audit.

9.4 The Council and relevant teams will ensure that staff have in place the appropriate training 
on asbestos awareness and risk assessment procedures.

9.5 Where work is of a pre-planned and intrusive nature (for example: structural repairs, some 
voids, kitchen and bathroom upgrades, re-wiring, roofing etc.), the asbestos report will be 
provided to the contractor before commencement of works.

10. Asbestos Training / Awareness 
10.1The Council has agreed that the minimum standard of Asbestos Awareness Training 
for its staff and contractors shall be UKATA (UK Asbestos Training Association) approved. 
All new training and refresher training will be determined on a risk based process as 
detailed in the Asbestos Management Plan. The Council will audit whether annual asbestos 
related training has been provided by the contractors employed by the Council to all 
operatives working upon Council property.

11. Procurement

11.1 The Council will only use services of asbestos removal contractors for non-licensed works 
that have provided sufficient competency information in advance. Where licensed removal 
is required, only companies currently on the Health & Safety Executive Asbestos License 
holders list will be appointed.

11.2 At procurement stage, the Council will require a contractor’s asbestos policy where 
applicable, in order to assess its appropriateness for the work to be undertaken. It is the 
responsibility of the relevant service that is procuring the work to check the Asbestos 
Management Database for the latest building information. 

12. Information sharing

12.1The Council maintains a procedure for informing people about the presence of asbestos. This 
will include but is not limited to:

 Staff
 Contractors
 Commercial Tenants / Leaseholders (see below *)
 Home improvement applicants in Council owned premises (see section 13 below)
 Members of the public (only where a need to know exists)
 Members

* Tenants / Leaseholders will be provided with the asbestos report for the communal parts 
of their building (where applicable) and these will also be updated when there is a change.

13 Home Improvement Applications

13.1 The Council will review all new Home Improvement Applications in domestic premises they 
have control over against the database. Where no asbestos survey report exists one will be Page 18



commissioned. If the work involves invasive works, a targeted Refurbishment & Demolition 
survey will be carried out. The Council will carry out all asbestos enabling works for 
approved improvement requests. However, reinstatement works following asbestos 
removal works or damaged décor is the responsibility of the tenants. 

14 Asbestos Incidents

14.1 Where it has been reported that ACMs may have been disturbed or damaged the Council’s 
emergency procedure will be activated. A qualified asbestos person (qualified to P405 
level) will respond immediately and be on site as soon as practicable, to assess and 
request a specialist asbestos contractor to attend where appropriate. Liaison will take place 
with any tenants, staff and contractors on site and an independent UKAS (United Kingdom 
Accreditation Service) air reassurance test will be commissioned.

15 Asbestos contractors

15.1 The Council will only use companies currently on the Health & Safety Executive Asbestos 
License holders list to provide asbestos related services for work that falls under Licensed 
Asbestos, for the effective management of asbestos risks.

15.2 The Council will use suitably qualified contractors in working with Notifiable Non-Licensed 
and Non Licensed Asbestos works, where this work applies.

15.3 Works on non-licensed asbestos may be carried out by Council Employees provided they 
have undertaken “working with non-licensed asbestos” training, supported by re-training 
every year. 

16 Labelling of Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM’s)

16.1 ACMs will not be labelled in sole domestic housing properties.

16.2 ACMs in Corporate properties, common areas etc that the Council owns or manages will 
not generally be labelled, unless specifically detailed in the individual management plan for 
that premises. Instead the presence of Asbestos will be recorded in the Asbestos 
Management Plan for those premises, and will be a requirement that this document is 
checked for the presence of Asbestos before any works are undertaken. These will be 
checked, reviewed and updated as necessary during the ACM re-inspection surveys.

17 Health Surveillance

17.1 Where there is an incident that may affect people’s health, the Council Human Resources 
Department will retain factual records and circumstantial observations concerning that 
possible exposure, for a minimum of 40 years from the date of the incident.

18 Monitoring

18.1 The Council will closely monitor works by contractors and their own workforce to ensure 
compliance. See Appendix A for responsible persons.

18.2 The Council will monitor and review risk assessments (RAs) for proposed, pre-planned 
works to ensure that they meet the Council’s standards. As per Section 9, such RA’s will be 
made available for review and audit, followed by work in progress inspections. See 
Appendix A for responsible persons.

18.3 The Council will monitor the usage of the asbestos database and the Place based 
Directorate will be responsible for monitoring.

18.4 The Council will undertake checks of Risk Assessments and associated Method 
Statements on responsive repairs, on a sample basis by the Council’s appointed Health & 
Safety Advisor. Page 19



18.5 The Council will require contractors to provide evidence that relevant asbestos training and 
annual refreshers has been undertaken, prior to any works taking place and approval being 
given by the relevant team.

18.6 Any breach of this policy and its procedures are to be reported by staff and contractors to 
the relevant Manager (in relation to the work being carried out), the head of that directorate 
and the Council’s appointed H & S Advisor.

19 Property Management Compliance Sub Group (PMCSG)

19.1 This will include both operational and management staff from relevant services of the 
Council. It will be a sub-group reporting into the Health and Safety Committee on a 
quarterly basis. It will meet on a quarterly basis to monitor and ensure adherence with the 
Council’s Asbestos Policy, Management Plan and associated detailed procedures / 
protocols.  The Group will be chaired by the Executive Public Protection Manager, who will 
report to the Strategic Health & Safety Group.

20 Corporate Risk Register

20.1 Asbestos is identified as a separate risk on the Council’s Corporate Risk register and as 
such will be reviewed on an annual basis. In addition to the PMCSG’s activity, the Council’s 
Strategic Health and Safety Group will ensure there is a regular review of the 
implementation of the policy, management plan and procedures by its staff and contractors. 
The outcome of internal audits will be reported to the PMCSG.

SIGNATURE:

Anna Graves Chief Executive 

DATE:
 

Page 20



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Julie Kenneally, Executive Director of Commercialisation and 
Councillor Christine Lawton, Portfolio Holder for Housing

To: Cabinet – 3 May 2016

Author: Matthew Hogan, Strategic Housing Manager

Subject: Delivery of Extra Care Housing at Kings Road, Spalding

Purpose: To seek support for the delivery of a dementia-friendly supported 
housing scheme consisting of 39 affordable apartments at Kings 
Road, Spalding

Recommendations: 

1) That, subject to planning and full funding being in place, the Council agrees to support 
the proposal outlined in this report for the development of an Extra Care Housing 
development at Kings Road, Spalding.  

2) That, subject to planning consent, contract and full funding being in place, the council 
agrees to the transfer of council-owned land at Kings Road, Spalding to Lace Housing 
for a figure of £106,500, representing 50% of the market valuation of the site and a 
council contribution (by means of match-funding) to support the delivery of the scheme

3) That the capital receipt realised through the sale of the council-owned site at Kings 
Road, Spalding, is directly invested into the delivery of new housing through the 
Council’s wholly-owned housing company, Welland Homes Ltd.

4) That the council agrees to become a partner in the Lincolnshire Housing with Extra 
Care Design Guide Competition, alongside Lace Housing and the University of Lincoln, 
with a view for the final design guide to support and inform the final design of the 
facilities provided as part of the proposed development. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1      What is Extra Care Housing?

1.1.1   Extra Care Housing is a specialist form of accommodation designed for vulnerable 
persons, such as those who are elderly, frail, disabled and/or experiencing 
conditions such as dementia, who want to retain their independence but require 
some care and support in order to do so. Extra Care housing is not a care home; it 
is a person’s individual home, and commonly consists of self-contained one or two 
bed self-contained apartments complete with a kitchen, dining room, and 
bath/shower room. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8.



1.1.2   The principle benefit of an Extra Care Housing is that it is a housing setting that is 
designed to support independent living for those with care and support needs, thus 
preventing vulnerable individuals from reaching a point where they require 
residential care. For residents, an Extra Care setting provides an opportunity to 
have physical care needs, along with your day-to-day support needs, met in your 
own home within a communal environment. 

1.1.3 The care needs of residential in Extra Housing will range from lower care needs 
through to higher and more intensive care needs. It is an especially effective form of 
housing to meet the needs of those with dementia. 

1.1.4   Extra Care Housing is designed around a number of key principles; supporting 
independence whilst providing care and support, encouraging social interaction and 
engagement, supporting dignity and quality of life, and providing a setting of choice 
as opposed to last resort. 

1.1.5 In order to support these principles, Extra Care Housing schemes are designed so 
that they provide a range of communal facilities, such as a restaurant for use by 
residents and their families, a hair salon, a small shop, assisted bathing facilities, 
hobby rooms, laundrettes and electric buggy stores. Apartments within Extra Care 
Housing schemes are often available for outright sale, others for low cost rent, and 
sometimes in the form of shared equity or shared ownership, with priority for homes 
being reserved for local households.

1.2 The situation regarding provision in South Holland

1.2.1 Given the range of benefits associated with this form of housing provision, Extra 
Care Housing is an increasingly common form of older person’s accommodation 
across the UK. Central government actively promotes Extra Care Housing as a form 
of housing provision to meet the needs of an ageing population. 

1.2.2 However, despite the significantly older age profile of the district, there is no Extra 
Care Housing provision in South Holland. The current provision within the district is 
predominately split between general needs housing (where people will receive care 
at home), sheltered housing such as that provided by the Council (which provides 
communal living albeit with a lower level of day to day support than that provided 
within Extra Care Housing), and privately-run residential and nursing care schemes 
which support those who can no longer live independently without significant levels 
of care, often at a high cost to the resident. 

1.2.3 It should be noted that, when compared with the rest of the UK, Lincolnshire as a 
county is significantly behind the rest of the county in terms of Extra Care Housing 
provision. In Lincolnshire there are around 350 people aged 65+ for every Extra 
Care place across the county. In Norfolk the figure stands at 250 people aged 65+ 
for each place, and in Cambridgeshire it stands at 100 people aged 65+ for each 
place. Furthermore, within Lincolnshire, South Holland is the only district without an 
Extra Care Housing scheme; there are three schemes in South Kesteven, three in 
East Lindsay, and one in Sleaford, Boston, Gainsborough and several in Lincoln. 

Page 22



1.2.4 This unmet need is reflected in the Council’s evidence concerning housing need in 
the district. The 2014 Strategic Housing Market Assessment identified a need for 42 
units of specialist housing for older persons per annum over the next 20 years to 
meet the needs of a rapidly ageing population. Furthermore, a 2014 assessment by 
Lincolnshire County Council identified an immediate need for 64 extra care units in 
South Holland, and identified Spalding as the fourth highest town in Lincolnshire in 
terms of location of need, marginally behind places such as Louth and Skegness 
where the population is ageing most rapidly. In that sense, with an absence of Extra 
Care Housing in the district, there is a major gap in the provision for older persons 
locally who require care and support to live independently.

1.3     The South Holland District Council Position Statement on Extra Care Housing 
2015-2018

1.3.1 The Council has been aware of this position for some time. In response to this, in 
March 2015 the Council adopted the South Holland District Council Position 
Statement on Extra Care Housing 2015-2018. The position statement, which 
received cross-council support and attracted public interest at the time of adoption, 
made the delivery of Extra Care Housing a Council priority. The document set out 
the evidence base in relation to need, the Council’s vision for extra care housing, 
the strategy for delivery of such a scheme, and a target to deliver a scheme by the 
end of 2017/18. Specially, the document set out the following: 

 A strategic approach based on the Council seeking to enable the delivery of 
Extra Care Housing through a high quality, reputable and specialist provider, as 
opposed to seeking to become a provider itself

 A commitment to explore the use of Council-owned assets as a catalyst for 
enabling the provision of Extra Care Housing. 

 A vision based around Extra Care Provision Located in sustainable locations 
within the district, well positioned in terms of access to services, transport and 
the wider community

 A vision based around provision being mixed tenure, meeting the needs of those 
who can afford to buy in part or outright, along with those whose only option is to 
rent

1.3.2 Following the adoption of the position statement, the South Holland Corporate Plan 
2015-2019 was adopted with the inclusion of making the delivery of Extra Care 
Housing a priority area of activity for the authority.  

1.4     The steps taken thus far to realise the ambitions set out in the vision 
statement

1.4.1  Leading up to and around the adoption of the position statement, officers of the 
Council had commenced discussions with key organisations involved in the delivery 
of Extra Care Housing. These partners included the Homes and Communities 
Agency, the Local Enterprise Partnership, and Lincolnshire County Council. Officers 
also initiated discussions with Lace Housing; a voluntary, non-profit making 
Registered Provider and charity who specialise in the delivery and management of 
older persons housing exclusively in Lincolnshire. The organisation, which was 

Page 23



founded in 1964 as the Lincoln Association for the Care of the Elderly, provides 
around 900 homes and a range of support services across the county. This includes 
Extra Care housing, alongside sheltered housing, residential care homes, and 
leasehold accommodation for older people for sale, including housing schemes in 
Boston and Bourne. Lace Housing also provide a number of services for older 
people, including a Wellbeing and Hospital Transport Service. They do not, 
however, own or operate any accommodation provision within South Holland. 

1.4.2 Following positive discussions, including a number of visits from officers and 
members to examples of existing Lace Housing accommodation schemes, Lace 
Housing and officers agreed to work in partnership to explore the feasibility of 
developing an Extra Care Housing scheme in South Holland. Over several months 
this led to officers of the Council undertaking a trawl of potential sites, including 
Council-owned land. A number of potential sites were considered, with assessment 
of suitability based around the strategic criteria defined within the Council’s Extra 
Care Position Statement (specifically in relation to criteria based around accessible 
locations, close to transport, amenities and shops). This process led to a Council 
owned site at Kings Road, Spalding being identified as a site with significant 
potential and suitability for Extra Care housing, given its proximity to the amenities 
within central Spalding, its location adjacent to shops and the train station, and the 
site being on the eastern side of the railway line.

1.4.3  The site, which is classed as being a ‘General Fund Surplus Asset’ on the 
authority’s asset register, is 0.2328ha/0.575 acres in size. The site has been in the 
ownership of the Council since August 1967 and has been vacant since for a 
considerable period of time, after its former use an auction hall came to an end.  

1.4.4 Following the identification of a suitable site and informal discussions with senior 
officers and members, a project team was bought together to consider the feasibility 
of the site for the delivery of an Extra Care Housing scheme. The team, which was 
co-ordinated jointly by Lace Housing and the Council, consisted of an employer’s 
agent employed by Lace Housing, an architects and a quantity surveyor from the 
Lindum Group (who are Lace Housing’s delivery partner for new housing 
developments), a member of development management from the Council’s 
planning team, and the Council’s Strategic Housing Manager. This project group 
oversaw the creation of an outline development proposal, feasibility assessment 
and financial viability appraisal, with the costs of this feasibility work met by Lace 
Housing. 

1.5   The outline development proposal 

1.5.1 The product of this project team has been an outline development proposal for a 
three storey Extra Care Housing scheme on the site. The proposed development 
will consist of the following: 

 39 individual self-contained apartments, including 26 two bed apartments and 13 
large one bed apartments, split between a mix of apartments available for low 
cost rent and on a ‘shared equity’ basis. Each self-contained apartment includes 
a kitchen with appliances, an adapted bathroom and a living room.

 A range of facilities for use by residents, including the following;

Page 24



o An open-plan foyer and reception area, containing a small shop, hair 
salon and a restaurant with seating for 64, for use by residents and their 
visitors

o A hobby / games room
o A laundrette
o Four assisted bath rooms
o An appointment /treatment room for use by GPs visiting residents on the 

site
o Five communal seating / lounge areas 
o An internal and fully enclosed electric scooter store
o A communal garden and patio area

1.5.2  In developing an outline proposal, a significant amount of feasibility work has been 
undertaken. This includes the following: 

 A financial viability appraisal to provide a total scheme build-cost. The details of 
these findings are set out below.  

 Detailed ‘pre-planning’ discussions with the Council’s planning teams 
concerning the development proposal. The initial conversations with planning 
colleagues have been positive, both in terms of proposed use of the site and the 
proposed design. 

 Detailed discussions with Network Rail concerning access. Whereas the site is 
Council-owned, the Council does not own the land that provides current access 
arrangements to the site. Instead, the Council holds an easement which grants 
the access to the site. Network Rail have not raised any objections concerning 
the use of the existing easement to service the proposed development, but have 
requested that efforts are made to made the secure the adoption of the access 
and associated highway work by the county council.

 Discussions with Lincolnshire County Council Highways concerning highways 
matters. LCC Highways have responded positively to the proposals. 
Furthermore, John Sharpe at LCC Highways has agreed in principle that LCC 
would adopt the highway works associated with the access arrangements. 

 Through the Council’s planning team, discussions with the Environment Agency 
concerning flood mitigation measures. The EA has confirmed that flood 
mitigation measures would be required to attract the EA’s support, namely 
finished floor levels should be set a minimum of 500mm above ground level, 
with flood resilient construction incorporated to a minimum height of 300mm 
above the predicted flood level.

 A topographical survey to understand the extent of services that run across the 
site. This survey has confirmed that there are no barriers to developing the site 
in relation to services such as gas pipes, storm drains and sewers. 

 Discussions with the Homes and Communities Agency. The HCA, who are one 
of the key sources of government capital funding to support the delivery of the 
scheme, have provided a positive response to the proposal for the scheme. The 

Page 25



Investment Manager for the East Midland, Sandy Ward, has visited the site and 
has been provided with an overview of the development proposal. 

 Discussions with Lincolnshire County Council Adult Social Care. Adult Social 
Care team at LCC have made available an £8m capital grant fund to support the 
delivery of 600 units of Extra Care Housing across Lincolnshire. Several 
discussions have taken place at an officer level concerning the proposed 
scheme, alongside opportunities for capital funding to support delivery.  

 Discussions with various internal Council teams. A number of discussions have 
taken place with internal teams concerning the plans for the site. These 
discussions include the Council’s Assets team, development contract team, and 
Environmental Services. 

1.6      Scheme cost and funding sources

1.6.1 The total capital cost of the development proposal has been estimated at around 
£5.8m. A total of £5.2m in funding has been identified for the scheme, based on 
assumptions concerning private investment and government grant. Details of these 
sources of funding, which includes commercially sensitive figures in relation to 
private investment that Lace Housing are proposing to invest into the scheme, are 
set out in the Appendix 4 of this report. 

1.6.2 This leaves a funding gap of around £600,000. A series of activities are taking place 
to bridge the funding gap, including the following; 

 Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership Growth Fund. The 
GLLEP has recently invited expressions of interest for projects that require 
support to bring about delivery. An expression of interest, seeking capital 
funding to support the project, was submitted by the Council and Lace Housing 
on March 7th 2016. The outcome of this expression of interest will be determined 
in due course. 

 A further reduction in build costs. Lace Housing are also exploring the 
development of a further two Extra Care Housing schemes in across 
Lincolnshire. Lace Housing are exploring how the build of these two schemes 
alongside the Spalding development can further reduce the build costs 
associated with the development, providing further economies of scale. 

1.7      Land disposal

1.7.1 In order to understand the market valuation of the Council owned land at Kings 
Road, the Council has commissioned two independent valuations of the site. The 
results of these two valuation exercises are set out below. The full valuation reports 
for the site form part of the appendices of this report. 

District Valuer Banks Longs, Lincoln
Value of the site for 
proposed use

£213,000 £175,000

Value of the site for 
market use

£243,000 £225,000

Page 26



The report recommendation is that South Holland disposes of the site to Lace 
Housing at a value less than market consideration. It is proposed that the Council 
considers sale of the site at 50% of the open value attributed to the site by the 
District Valuer for the proposed use, equating to £106,500. The reasons for this as 
follows: 

 Match funding. 

1.7.2   In formulating a proposal for the site, the authority has held discussions with the 
Homes and Communities Agency; the major government body that oversees capital 
grant investment into new affordable housing. The HCA’s stance in relation to 
affordable housing development on public-owned land is that, in order to reduce the 
call on government grant, local authorities should provide land at nil-value in order 
to contribute towards the delivery of schemes. 

1.7.3 However, officers of the Council have made a case to the HCA to state that, given 
the proximity of the site to central Spalding and the fact that the site is accounted for 
within the general fund (as opposed to housing land within the Council’s Housing 
Revenue Account), the Council would want to see some form of capital receipt 
should the site come forward for development. The HCA have given a strong 
indication that selling the site for a reduced value, thus enabling the Council to 
achieve a capital receipt whilst reducing the call on government capital grant, would 
be acceptable to the HCA when considering any forthcoming application for grant. 

In that respect, the sale of the site at a reduced value would represent the Council’s 
contribution towards the delivery of the scheme. This contribution would sit 
alongside the contribution that officers are seeking from Lincolnshire County 
Council, and also from the Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership. 

 Viability.

1.7.4   As set out earlier in the report, the sale of the site to Lace Housing for £106,500 still 
leaves a funding gap of around £600,000. As set out earlier in this report, officers 
and Lace Housing are exploring a number of options to bridge this gap, but it is 
clear that there is a limit to the land value that the scheme can sustain in order to 
achieve delivery. In that essence, a reduced land value better represents the overall 
viability of the development. 

1.8     Disposal Consents and Capital Receipt Accounting

1.8.1  The Council has general disposal consent that allows the authority to sell for less 
than market value, up to a value of £2,000,000, where the disposal supports 
‘economic, social or environmental wellbeing’.  In order to further support housing 
development within the district, it is proposed that the capital receipt realised from 
the sale of the Council-owned site at Kings Road is directly invested into the 
delivery of new housing through the Council’s wholly-owned housing company, 
Welland Homes Ltd.

Page 27



1.9      A Lincolnshire model for Extra Care Housing

1.9.1 Good quality Extra Care Housing relies heavily upon good design. This includes 
design in relation to layout of individual apartments, the accessibility of on-site 
facilities, and the use of light and space to create attractive communal and social 
areas. Good design also plays a role in creating environments where those with 
dementia are able to live with relative independence.

1.9.2  Lace Housing are working closely with the Faculty of Architecture and Faculty of 
Social Care at University of Lincoln on a number of projects deigned to further 
develop a model for Extra Care Housing in Lincolnshire. This includes work looking 
at developing a good design guide for Extra Care Housing, and looking at how 
assistive technology can support better health outcomes for residents in Extra Care 
Housing. 

1.9.3  The Council, Lace Housing and the University of Lincoln have held initial 
discussions around how the work that the University are undertaking around 
furthering the model for Extra Care Housing can play a role in the proposed 
development at Kings Road, Spalding. The following has been proposed as part of 
those discussions; 

1.9.4  That the University of Lincoln, working across the Faculties of Architecture and 
Social Care, is presently developing a ‘good design guide’ for Extra Care Housing in 
Lincolnshire. The guide will focus on will focus on developing best practice 
guidance for the design of the internal layout of Extra Care Housing schemes, the 
design of treatment rooms, design in relation to accessibility arrangements, and the 
design of communal space.  The Council is being invited to consider whether it 
would like to become a supporting partner in this scheme, with the view for the 
design guide and the faculties of Architecture and Social Care to play a role in the 
final design of the layout and facilities within the proposed scheme at Kings Road, 
Spalding. This is with a  view to ensure that the development at Kings Road plays a 
role in delivering excellence in the design of Extra Care Housing in Lincolnshire, 
and that the research and development that flows from the implementation of the 
design guide influences the evolution of extra care housing across the county. 

1.10  Next Steps

1.10.1Should Council approve the recommendations of this report, the project milestones 
and timeline for the scheme will proceed on the following basis;

 Council and Lace Housing to submit funding bid to HCA submitted during 
bidding window: May 2016 

 Detailed discussions with other funders: May - June 2016
 Contract entered into concerning land transfer, with contractual requirement for 

funding and planning to be in place before transfer completes: May-June 2016
 Planning application submitted: Summer 2016
 Contractors appointed: October 2016  
 Start on site: November – February 2017
 Scheme completion: December 2017 - March 2018
 First occupation: January - April 2018

Page 28



2.0 Options

2.1 Approve to the recommendation. Should the Council approve the 
recommendations, work to bridge the funding gap will be able to proceed with 
assurances that both Lace Housing and officers are working towards a proposal 
with Council support. The process of submitting a planning application for the 
proposed development will also commence. 

2.2 Do nothing. Should the Council not support the recommendations, then the 
proposed scheme will not come forward for delivery. This is because the scheme 
is dependent upon the transfer of land to Lace Housing, and the a sub-market land 
value in order to attract match funding from central government. 

3.0  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1  The reasons for the recommendations are to secure the delivery of the proposed  
 Extra Care Housing scheme at Kings Road, Spalding, meeting the strategic  
 housing ambitions set out within the Council’s Position Statement on Extra Care   
 Housing 2015-2018 alongside a major critical activity set out in the Council’s   
 Corporate Plan Delivery Plan.  

4.0        EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1       The delivery of a strategically important form of housing to meet evidenced 
housing need. 

4.1.1   As set out earlier in this report, various sources of evidence suggest that there is a 
 high need for Extra Care Housing in South Holland. Furthermore, the Council is  
 aware that Lincolnshire is an area with one of the lowest levels of Extra Care  
 Housing provision per capita in the UK, and that South Holland (with its ageing  
 population structure) is the only district area in Lincolnshire without any Extra Care 
 Housing provision. Consequently, the recommendation will be a major milestone in 
 securing the delivery of Extra Care Housing provision in South Holland.   
 Furthermore, the Council will play a role in the allocation of the homes built on the 
 site, with priority going to local households in identified need. 

4.2    Delivery of corporate objectives

4.2.1   The delivery of the proposed development at Kings Road, Spalding will ensure that 
 the Council meets the aims of the Extra Care delivery strategy adopted by Council 
 in March 2015, in addition to meeting all four of the priorities within the South  
 Holland Corporate Plan 2015-19, specifically in relation to ‘developing safer,  
 stronger, healthier and more independent communities while protecting the most 
 vulnerable’.  The delivery of the proposed development will also achieve a  
 significant ‘critical activity’ within the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan, which includes 
 a target to deliver an Extra Care Housing Scheme by March 2018. 

Page 29



4.3    Inward investment 

4.3.1    The delivery of the scheme will see just under £6 million in inward investment flow 
 into the district, including central government grant for specialist affordable  
 housing. The scheme will also create approximately 10-12 full time jobs,   
 approximately £288,000 in New Homes Bonus based on the recently revised four-
 year figure, and estimated Council tax revenue of £35,000 per annum. 

4.4     Regeneration

4.4.1  The Council-owned site at Kings Road, Spalding, has been vacant for a 
considerable period of time. Developing the site for the proposed use provides an 
opportunity to bring forward a vacant brownfield site in a prominent location within 
Spalding. The use of the site for the proposed purpose has been considered by the 
Council’s planning team, who have provided a positive response to the proposals 
for the site. Furthermore, positive discussions have taken place with senior planning 
officers concerning the ‘fit’ with this proposal and the wider strategic planning of 
Spalding town centre. Finally, the proposal will secure the delivery of a building of a 
high design quality in a key location in central Spalding, contributing to the wider 
regeneration of central Spalding.  

4.5  Strategic partnerships

4.5.1 The recommendation will contribute towards the creation of a strategically important 
relationship between the Council and Lace Housing; a specialist provider of older 
persons accommodation who operate across Lincolnshire, but who previously have 
never operated within and/or held a relationship with South Holland. Officers of the 
Council approached Lace Housing to discuss the delivery of an Extra Care Housing 
scheme in the district on the basis of their reputation as a quality provider, but also 
on the basis that there is a need to develop strategic partnerships with providers 
who cater for the needs of older people, given the population profile of South 
Holland as a district. It is hoped that the successful delivery of this proposal will 
enable the Council and Lace Housing to continue to build a strategic partnership 
based around the delivery of further housing to meet the needs of the district. 

4.6  Reputation and prestige

4.6.1   As set out in this report, South Holland is a district without any form of Extra Care 
Housing provision. The recommendation will contribute to building the Council’s 
reputation as an authority that proactively plans for housing designed to meet the 
identified needs of the local population.  

Furthermore, the link between the proposed scheme and research and 
development in good design guidance through the University of Lincoln presents an 
opportunity to ensure that the proposed scheme for Kings Road reflects best 
practice in relation to the design of Extra Care Housing, helping to meet the 
aspirations set out within the South Holland District Council Position Statement on 
Extra Care Housing 2015-2018 for any provision within the district to be well 
designed and of a high quality. 

Page 30



5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 The development of an Extra Care Housing scheme will create an environmental 
impact. However the mitigation of these impacts will be dealt with through the 
planning process.  

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 As set out within the report, the Council is able to dispose of land at less than 
market value where the asset has been valued at less than £2m and where the 
disposal supports ‘economic, social or environmental wellbeing’

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 The recommendation concerning the disposal of Council-owned land at Kings 
Road, Spalding is ‘subject to contract’. Any disposal of land would be dealt with via 
a contractual arrangement between the Council and Lace Housing.  

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 As set out with the report, the delivery of an Extra Care Housing scheme in the 
district meet each of the Council’s four key priorities as set out within the 
Corporate Plan, specifically in relation to ‘developing safer, stronger, healthier and 
more independent communities while protecting the most vulnerable’. The delivery 
of the scheme will also ensure that the Council meets the aims of the Extra Care 
delivery strategy adopted by Council in March 2015

5.5 Financial 

5.5.1 The recommendation of the report in relation to the disposal of land at Kings Road, 
Spalding, holds obvious financial implications for the Council, namely in terms of 
the realisation of a capital receipt for the sale of the land, albeit it at a value below 
market value in order to support the process of attracting match-funding to support 
the development proposal. 

5.5.2 It is anticipated that the broader development proposal will bring about wider 
financial implications, namely through the generation of New Homes Bonus and an 
increase in the size of the Council tax pool. 

5.6 Health & Wellbeing

5.6.1 As set out in the report, the recommendation is intended to being about the supply 
of a form of housing to meet an unmet need. This includes accommodation 
specifically designed to support the needs of those living with dementia, frailties 
and life-long illnesses. In that sense, the recommendation will bring about the 
delivery of accommodation that will make a significant contribution towards 
improving health and wellbeing within the district. 

Page 31



5.7 Reputation

5.7.1 As set out in this report, South Holland is a district without any form of Extra Care 
Housing provision. The recommendation will contribute to building the Council’s 
reputation as an authority that proactively plans for housing designed to meet the 
identified needs of the local population.  

5.7.2   Furthermore, the link between the proposed scheme and research and   
  development in good design guidance through the University of Lincoln presents 
  an opportunity to ensure that the proposed scheme for Kings Road reflects best 
  practice in relation to the design of Extra Care Housing, helping to meet the   
  aspirations set out within the South Holland District Council Position Statement on 
  Extra Care Housing 2015-2018 for any provision within the district to be well   
  designed and of a high quality.

5.8   Risk Management 

5.8.1  There are a number of factors that may pose a risk to the delivery of this scheme.      
 These risks can be categorised along the lines of capital funding, revenue funding
  and development risks.  

5.8.2   In terms of risks associated with capital funding, the scheme requires funding from 
a range of sources in order to support its delivery. This includes funding from the 
HCA, the GLLEP and other parties with an interest in securing high quality older 
persons accommodation in South Holland. Successful funding bids will be required 
to be made into each of these organisations to secure delivery. In order to 
increase the success of these funding bids, it is advantageous to be in a position 
where Council support for the scheme can be demonstrated, in addition to 
demonstrating significant progress in terms of feasibility and planning consent. 
Consequently, should Council approve the report recommendations, the likelihood 
of applications for funding being successful will increase helping to mitigate an 
element of this risk.

5.8.3   In terms of revenue funding, the development of national policy in relation to 
housing benefit for supported accommodation is being monitored by Lace Housing 
in respect of the viability of the proposed development. Immediate risks in relation 
to revenue funding have not been identified as things stand at present, but Lace 
Housing will continue to monitor the impact of future policy changes on revenue 
streams. 

5.8.4   In terms of risk associated with development, these are being managed through 
the feasibility work that Lace Housing have undertaken. This feasibility work, which 
is outlined under 1.5.1 of this report, has sought to minimise risks associated with 
delivery of the scheme.  

5.8.5   In terms of managing risks to the Council’s interests, any contractual 
arrangements involving the transfer of land to Lace Housing will be on the basis of 
funding and planning being in place, protecting the Council’s interest in the event 
of the scheme not coming to fruition. 

Page 32



5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.9.1   A decision on this matter is being sought now in order to enable the Council and 
Lace Housing to enter into the forthcoming HCA funding bidding process having 
obtained the support of the Council and having agreement in place concerning the 
sale of the site.   

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Spalding Castle

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Matthew Hogan, Strategic Housing Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764524
Email: mhogan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: Yes

Exempt Decision: No, albeit with one exempt appendix containing financial data 
relating to private borrowings and investment

This report refers to a Discretionary Service

Appendices attached to this report for consideration: 

Appendix 1 District Valuers Report – please note that this item is no 
longer available due to changes in Data Protection 
legislation.

Appendix 2 Banks Long and Co Valuation Report
Appendix 3                   Extra Care Housing Resident Case Study - Harry 
Appendix 4                         Lace Housing Brochure

(Please note that the following appendix is not for publication by virtue of 
Paragraph 3 (Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person, including the authority holding that information))

Appendix 5                        Summary of funding sources

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Appendix 3: Extra Care Housing Case Study – ‘Harry’ 
 
Harry is now 91 years old and currently lives in a LACE Extra Care Housing scheme. He moved in 5 years 
ago, having become seriously at risk living in the community in his own home. He was referred to LACE by 
Adult Social Care with the application supported by Harry’ GP. 
 
The risk in the community was mainly because of the onset of Dementia and the fact that he no longer had 
a partner, she having passed away, and no family living locally in the area. 
 
Harry was unable to follow simple written instructions and was confused about items around him as part of 
daily life – e.g., often mistaking his TV remote control for a telephone and vice versa. He would never 
remember to take essential medications, although he was still driving (!) when referred to us….although, on 
occasion, he had forgotten where he lived and was reliant on the kindness of others to get back to his 
home. He was in the habit of ringing his 
son many times during the day and night asking the same questions over and over again and never having 
confidence that he had made the house secure at night, so constantly checking locks and worrying. Not 
without some difficulty, working with the police and Adult Social Care, LACE staff were able to manage 
separation from the vehicle, thereby removing all associated risks….and, of course, he now uses the 
internal communication system so if he rings anyone, which he does far less frequently now, his 
communication system goes through to a member of the LACE support team rather than him constantly 
disturbing his family. 
 
Historically, the only provision for Harry would have been residential care – although he actually had no 
significant needs that would have been described as ‘personal care’. Other than risks around preparing hot 
meals, he was able to wash and dress himself, etc., etc. 
However, Extra Care Housing proved to be the right answer for him. He found a place where he had his 
own front door but where he could be confident that he was safe and secure, where meals and snacks 
were available to him when required, where staff would help him to regain and maintain some aspects of 
independent living. To all intents and purposes, Harry remains living independently 5 years on. He has a 
very small care package, mainly around monitoring and reminders about medication. He has a very simple 
and easily understood emergency communication system to which staff will respond if he needs assurance 
or support. We also facilitate him having a shopping delivery on a weekly basis and for him to attend day 
care at a social outreach centre twice a week to ensure wide social integration and diversity of interest. He 
often forgets who is delivering to him or who might be coming to pick him up or where he is going but on-
site staff are there to support him fully – assisting him to achieve what he wants to achieve rather than 
doing for him. Harry chooses to use the restaurant on a daily basis so risks around meal preparation in his 
own accommodation are avoided. 
 
LACE staff have a unique relationship with every tenant and each resident has an individual support plan. 
One of the main reasons for the sustained independence for Harry is the presence of staff to monitor and 
respond, without interfering, on a seven day a week basis – and often many times each day. In spite of his 
medication, his agitation and frustration with himself can escalate very quickly (over what can seem to 
others as relatively small matters) if there is no prompt responsive input to help clarify or resolve matters – 
examples include frequent forgetfulness around the fact that his friend is in hospital and not present in the 
building, not being able to work his TV to his satisfaction, not remembering where he has put things, etc. 
LACE staff also provide a constant communication channel to professionals and family to ensure that all 
stakeholders are informed about his well-being and his needs, etc. In summary, Harry has been able to 
continue living for over five years with a reasonably good level of independence. 
 
He feels safe and secure so anxiety there has gone and he recognises and enjoys a reasonable quality of 
life where the alternative would have been long-term institutional residential care. He has his own front door 
and still has and makes choices, but with support and assistance where necessary to allow him to achieve 
his chosen outcomes rather than someone doing everything for him and having his independence, dignity 
and self-respect totally eroded. 

Appendix 3

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



www.lacehousing.org

Providing a Quality 
of Life and a 
Standard of 
Living

Appendix 4

P
age 51



Services Provided 

Personal Care ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓ ✓
Nursing Care ✓
Meals ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓ ✓
Laundry ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓ ✓
Cleaning of Communal Areas ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Grounds Maintenance ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Window Cleaning ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Communal Heating/Lighting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Telecare/Emergency 
Call System

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Cleaning of Room ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Hairdressers ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓*

Council Tax ✓ N/A N/A N/A N/A

Scooter Storage ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Access to Cable Television ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Access to Internet ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Convenience Shop ✓ ✓
Lift Access ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Car Park (Not allocated 
spaces)

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Communal Lounge ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Guest Room ✓* ✓* ✓*

B
ri

ck
 K

iln
 P

la
ce

O
ls

en
 C

o
u

rt
 1

- 
38

W
o

rt
h

 C
o

u
rt

A
lm

o
n

d
 H

o
u

se

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

o
u

se

R
as

en
 H

o
u

se

M
id

d
le

 S
tr

ee
t

O
ls

en
 C

o
u

rt
 6

0 
- 

68

O
ls

en
 C

o
u

rt
 3

9 
- 

59

Se
w

el
l C

o
u

rt

R
u

ck
la

n
d

 C
o

u
rt

N
ea

le
 C

o
u

rt

Ec
cl

es
h

ar
e 

C
o

u
rt

Welcome to LACE Housing, a Voluntary, Non 
Profit Making Association with Charitable Status
For over 50 years we have responded to the needs of older people. 

Today, we are the leading social housing provider in Lincolnshire specialising in a wide range of housing, care 
and support options. 

We understand that in later life people value independence and dignity at a time when frailty and disability 
threaten to take it away. That’s why we pride ourselves in designing, developing and maintaining a very high 
standard of accommodation and support services ensuring that the needs of those in our care are met.

We hope that you find our brochure informative and provides you with an insight into the services that 
we offer. To arrange a visit or discuss your needs or those of another, please do not hesitate to contact us  
(see back cover ‘How to Contact Us’).

Housing with Extra Care

Brick Kiln Place, Grantham 

PAGE 

03

Olsen Court, Lincoln 

PAGE 

04

Worth Court, Bourne 

PAGE 

05

Sheltered Housing for Rent

Almond House, Lincoln

Richmond House, Lincoln

Rasen House, Lincoln 

PAGE 

06

7a – 7e Middle Street, 
North Hykeham

Olsen Court, Lincoln 

PAGE 

07

Housing for Sale

Brick Kiln Place, Grantham

Olsen Court, Lincoln

Sewell Court, Lincoln

PAGE 

08

Care Homes

Ruckland Court, Lincoln 

PAGE 

09

Neale Court, North Hykeham 

PAGE 

10

Eccleshare Court, Lincoln 

PAGE 

11

Support Services

Social Outreach Centres 

PAGE 

12

Transport 

PAGE 

13

Property and Maintenance 

PAGE 

13

Housing, Care & Support
Comparison Chart 

PAGE 

14

Who’s Who 

PAGE 

15

How to Contact Us

BACK COVER

Nick Chambers, Chief Executive

P
age 52



‘Housing with Extra Care’ is designed for older people who 
have high support and personal care needs. Care and support 
services are provided within self contained flats, which are 
available for rent and for sale.

Our ‘Housing with Extra Care’ schemes are built to a high 
design specification with additional facilities and support. The 
accommodation is for older people who still value independent 
living and want additional security and support. It is particularly 
relevant to those who require more specialised amenities and 
greater support in retirement accommodation. 

A 24 hour Care Team, commissioned by Lincolnshire County 
Council Adult Social Care, enable residents to receive an 
appropriate level of Care and Support as and when it is needed.

Our Support Staff are available to assist tenants, respond to 
emergencies, encourage social activities, report and monitor 
repairs and maintenance work and ensure that our accommodation 
and services remain at the highest possible standard.

Housing with 
Extra Care

Accommodation Facilities
• 40 Two Bedroom Self Contained Flats
• Wheelchair Access
• Personal Lounge
• Fully Fitted Kitchen with Electric Oven and Hob
• Level Access Shower, Wash Hand Basin and WC
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Access to Cable Television and the Internet
• Heating
• Built in Cupboards

Communal Facilities
• Seating Areas
• Two Comfortable Lounges
• Hobbies Room
• Newtons Restaurant
• Smiths cafe
• Parsons stores
• Laundrette
• Thatches Hair Salon
• Assisted Bathrooms
• Passenger Lift
• Mobility Scooter Storage
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens, Vegetable Plot and 
 Boules Area

Brick Kiln Place, Grantham
Officially opened in 2010 by HRH the Earl of Wessex, Brick Kiln 
Place is located within the historic town of Grantham and situated 
in a newly developed residential area within easy reach of a wide 
range of amenities including shops, post office and take aways.

H
ousing w

ith Extra C
are

Housing with Extra Care        03

‘No where I have seen offers a better combination of support and 
independence than Brick Kiln Place. 

God alone knows whether I will live to a grand old age. But if I do I hope 
to end up somewhere as warm and personal and upbeat as Brick Kiln 
Place.’ MP Nick Boles

P
age 53



Accommodation Facilities
• 38 Two Bedroom Self Contained Flats
• Wheelchair Access
• Personal Lounge
• Fully Fitted Kitchen with Electric Oven and Hob
• Level Access Shower, Wash Hand Basin and WC
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Access to Cable Television and the Internet
• Heating
• Built in Cupboards

Communal Facilities
• Seating Areas
• Comfortable Lounge
• Hobbies Room
• Restaurant
• Laundrette
• Hair Salon
• Assisted Bathrooms
• Passenger Lift
• Mobility Scooter Storage
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens

04 Housing with Extra Care

H
ou

sin
g 

w
ith

 E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e

‘My Mother really felt at home at Olsen Court.’

Olsen Court, Lincoln
Officially opened in 2006 by HRH the Countess of Wessex, Olsen Court is located within 
the historic City of Lincoln and situated in a popular residential area within easy reach of a 
wide range of amenities including Shops, Dentist, Pharmacy, Post Office, Building Society 
and Restaurants.

P
age 54



Housing with Extra Care        05

H
ousing w

ith Extra C
are

Worth Court, Bourne
Officially opened in 2009 by the Lord Lieutenant of Lincolnshire and ’Highly 
Commended’ at the East Midlands LABC Annual Awards, Worth Court is 
located within the historic market town of Bourne and situated in a residential 
area within easy reach of a wide range of amenities including Shops, Post 
Office and Recreational Facilities.

Accommodation Facilities
• 34 Two Bedroom Self Contained Flats
• Wheelchair Access
• Personal Lounge
• Fully Fitted Kitchen with Electric Oven and Hob
• Level Access Shower, Wash Hand Basin and WC
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Access to Cable Television and the Internet
• Heating
• Built in Cupboards

Communal Facilities
• Seating Areas
• Comfortable Lounge
• Restaurant
• Laundrette
• Hair Salon
• Assisted Bathrooms
• Passenger Lift
• Mobility Scooter Storage
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens

‘Just a little note to say a big thank you to you and all the people on 
the Committee who allocated a place at Worth Court for my Dad. 
To have my Dad so close to us means everything. He will not be 
lonely anymore.’ Mrs S

P
age 55



Our Sheltered Housing includes self contained 
flats, bungalows and bedsit style accommodation 
which are available to rent. Additional services 
are also provided in accordance with the terms 
of a tenancy agreement. 

Services include well maintained gardens, private 
car parking, lighting and cleaning of communal 
areas, external window cleaning, maintenance 
of heating systems, door entry system, 24 hour 
alarm call system and communal facilities.

Sheltered 
Housing    
for Rent

Rasen House, Lincoln
Built in 1966, Rasen House is situated in the North of the City, with the 
Cathedral, Lincolnshire Life Museum, The Lawn, Bailgate and a variety of 
amenities nearby including Shops, Post Office, Take Aways, Public House, Bus 
Stop and places of Worship.

‘I would also like to thank you for your service in general to the elderly 
people of Lincoln. I think your service is quite splendid.’ Mrs A

Richmond House, Lincoln
Converted in 1989, Richmond House is located in the West End of Lincoln; only ten minutes 
walk into the City Centre. It is a Victorian house situated close to various amenities including 
Shops, Post Office, Bus Stop, places of Worship and the West Common.

Accommodation Facilities
• 1 Self Contained Flat
• 12 Bedsit Style Flats
• Lounge with Bed Area
• Fitted Kitchen 
• WC and Wash Hand Basin 
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Gas Central Heating

Communal Facilities
• Bathroom & Shower Room
• Laundrette
• Guest Room
• Lounge
• Stair Lift
• Mobility Scooter Storage
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens
• Midday Meal

Accommodation Facilities
• 4 Self Contained Flats
• Lounge
• Fitted Kitchen 
• Bath/Shower, 
    Wash Hand Basin and WC
• Bedroom
• Built in Cupboard
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Electric Heating

Communal Facilities
• Car Park
• Storage

Almond House, Lincoln
Built in 1977, Almond House is situated in the South of the City 
in the pleasant residential area of Swanpool and close to various 
amenities including a Co-op, Post Office, Fish & Chip Shop, Public 
House, Bus Stop, places of Worship and Hartsholme Country Park.

Sh
el

te
re

d 
H

ou
sin

g 
fo

r R
en

t

06 Sheltered Housing for Rent

Accommodation Facilities
• 12 Single Self Contained Flats
• 4 Double Self Contained Flats
• Lounge
• Fitted Kitchen 
• Shower, Wash Hand Basin and WC
• Bedroom
• Built in Cupboard
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Gas Central Heating

Communal Facilities
• Bathroom
• Guest Room
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens

P
age 56



Sheltered Housing for Rent        07

Sheltered H
ousing for Rent

7a - 7e Middle Street, 
North Hykeham
Built in 1995, Middle Street is situated in the centre 
of the popular town of North Hykeham and is within 
easy reach of a wide range of amenities including a 
Co-op, Post Office, Library, Fish & Chip Shop, Public 
House, Bus Stop, places of Worship and The Green.

Accommodation Facilities
• 5 Self Contained Bungalows
• Hall
• Lounge
• Fitted Kitchen 
• Level  Access Shower, Wash 
 Hand Basin and WC
• 1 Bedroom
• Built in Cupboard
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Electric Heating

Communal Facilities
• External Drying Area
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens

‘May I first thank you for allocating me at Olsen Court. 
I now feel I have a home and feel so grateful.’ Mrs C

‘Many thanks for our new lights at Middle Street. They’ll be brill’!’ Mrs G

Accommodation Facilities
• 5 Self Contained Bungalows
• 4 Self Contained Flats
• Hall
• Lounge
• Fully Fitted Kitchen 
• Level  Access Shower, Wash 
   Hand Basin and WC
• 2 Bedrooms
• Built in Cupboard
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Gas Central Heating

Communal Facilities
• Assisted Bathrooms
• Lounge
• Hobbies Room
• Restaurant
• Laundrette
• Hair Salon
• External Drying Area
• Mobility Scooter Storage
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens

Olsen Court No     
60 - 68, Lincoln
Located in the Northeast of Lincoln off Carlton 
Boulevard. Olsen Court No 60 to 68 is part of a 
larger complex completed and officially opened 
during 2009 by the Bishop of Lincoln. Situated 
within a new residential area, Olsen Court No. 60 
to 68 is within easy reach of the Carlton Shopping 
Centre, public transport, open countryside and a 
boules area.

P
age 57



Our Housing for Sale is  either purpose built 
or available within existing developments of 
‘Sheltered’ and ‘Housing with Extra Care’. 
Housing for Sale is provided for those aged 55 
and over on a leasehold basis. We retain the 
position of freeholder with the responsibility 
for maintaining communal areas and services 
in accordance with the terms of a lease 
agreement.

Services include well maintained gardens, private 
car parking, lighting and cleaning of communal 
areas, external window cleaning, maintenance 
of heating systems, door entry system, 24 hour 
alarm call system and communal facilities.

Housing 
for Sale

Brick Kiln Place, 
Grantham
Officially opened in 2010 by HRH the Earl of 
Wessex, Brick Kiln Place is located within the 
historic town of Grantham and situated in a 
newly developed residential area within easy 
reach of a wide range of amenities including 
shops, post office and take away’s.

Sewell Court, Lincoln
Situated in the North of Lincoln near to the Arboretum and the 
County Hospital. Sewell Court was built in 1989 and provides 
6 ground and first floor two bedroom flats. Accommodation 
incorporates lounge, fully fitted kitchen, bedroom, WC, wash 
hand basin, bath/shower and built in storage.

Olsen Court No 39 - 59, 
Lincoln
Located in the Northeast of Lincoln off Carlton Boulevard. 
Olsen Court No 39 to 59 is part of a larger complex completed 
and officially opened during 2009 by the Bishop of Lincoln. 
Situated within a new residential area, Olsen Court No.s 39 to 
59 is within easy reach of the Carlton Shopping Centre, public 
transport, open countryside and a boules area.

‘The design and layout of the apartment is well thought through 
and it was particularly helpful to find so many little extras! All staff 
with whom we have come into contact have been so kind and I 
am sure they have been prepared to the highest standard to look 
after the needs of older people.’ Mr & Mrs C

Communal Facilities
• Seating Areas
• Two Comfortable Lounges
• Hobbies Room
• Newtons Restaurant
• Smiths cafe
• Parsons stores
• Laundrette
• Thatchers Hair Salon
• Assisted Bathrooms
• Passenger Lift
• Mobility Scooter Storage
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens, 

Vegetable Plot and Boules Area

Accommodation Facilities
• 21 Self Contained Flats
• Hall
• Lounge
• Fully Fitted Kitchen including        
   electric Oven, Hob and Fan
• Double Shower, Wash Hand     
   Basin and WC
• Plumbing for Washing     
   Machine & Dish Washer
• 2 Bedrooms
• Built in Cupboard(s)
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Electric Heating

H
ou

sin
g 

fo
r S

ale

08 Housing for Sale

Communal Facilities
• Furnished Seating Areas   
   and Corridors
• Lounge
• Hobbies Room
• Restaurant
• Laundrette
• Hair Salon
• Assisted Bathrooms
• External Drying Area
• Passenger Lift
• Mobility Scooter Storage
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens

Accommodation Facilities
• 6 Self Contained Flats
• Hall
• Lounge
• Fitted Kitchen 
• Bath/Shower, Wash Hand  
   Basin and WC
• 2 Bedrooms
• Built in Cupboard(s)
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Electric Heating

Communal Facilities
• External Drying Area
• Car Park
• Well Maintained Gardens

Accommodation Facilities
• 8 Two Bedroom Self 

Contained Flats
• Wheelchair Access
• Lounge
• Fully Fitted Kitchen with  

Electric Oven and Hob
• Level Access Shower, Wash   

Hand Basin and WC
• 24 Hour Alarm Call System
• Door Entry System
• Access to Cable Television  

and the Internet
• Heating
• Built in Cupboards

P
age 58



Care Homes        09

C
are H

om
es

Our Care Homes are registered and regulated by the Care 
Quality Commission and provide both long and short term 
Personal Nursing and Respite Care. A copy of the most recent 
Inspection Report for each Care Home is available upon 
request.

Long term care is for older people whose care needs cannot be 
met in their own home. 

Short term care is for older people who have care needs 
following a length of stay in hospital, wish to avoid an admission 
into hospital or require care at a time when their personal 
carer/relatives are away on holiday. 

Care is provided by our team of qualified staff who ensure that 
all medical needs are met in accordance with an individual care 
plan. Additional support from staff can be obtained by operating the 
internal call system. Our Restaurants provide all meals and respond 
to any special dietary requirements.

Meeting the cost of long term care can be a worry. That’s why we 
have identified a number of organisations that specialise in providing 
you with advice on funding long term care. They can also provide 
advice on a range of financial and legislative matters and your rights 
to care services and benefits. For further information, please do 
not hesitate to contact us (see back page ‘How to Contact Us’)

Care Homes

Accommodation Facilities
• 41 Single Self Contained Flats
• 6 Double Self Contained Flats
• Wheel Chair Access
• Personal Lounge
• Fitted Kitchen with Fridge
• Shower, Wash Hand Basin and WC
• Bed Area / Bedroom
• Built in Cupboard
• Small Safe

Communal Facilities
• 2 Comfortable Lounges
• Dining Room
• Assisted Bathrooms
• Payphone
• Laundry Service
• Attractive Gardens
• Care available 24 hours a day
• Internal Call System
• Mobility Scooter Storage

Ruckland Court, Lincoln
Situated in the North of Lincoln close to the A15 and the Lincoln 
by pass, Ruckland Court was built in 1989, refurbished in 2006 and 
provides Personal and Short Term Care for older people.

Care is provided within 41 single and 6 double self-contained flats 
on the ground and first floor. Each flat comprises of a personal 
lounge, fitted kitchen, private W.C, hand basin, shower and bed 
area with built in cupboard. Opportunity is given to personalise the 
flat with your own furniture. The home is wheelchair accessible 
and there is a passenger lift to the first floor.

Ruckland Court is also connected to an adjoining Social Outreach 
Centre, which provides a hair salon, activities, library, shop and 
chiropodist.

‘I cannot fault the care given to my aunt and will have no 
hesitation in recommending LACE Housing in the future’. Mr T

P
age 59



C
ar

e 
H

om
es

10 Care Homes

Neale Court, North Hykeham
Neale Court was purpose built in 1993, refurbished during 2006/07 and 
is situated in a quiet cul de sac in the town of North Hykeham, South of 
the City of Lincoln. Neale Court provides Personal and Short Term Care 
for Older People.

Care is provided within 23 single self-contained flats on the ground and 
first floor. Each flat comprises of a personal lounge, fitted kitchen, private 
W.C, hand basin, shower and bed area with built in cupboard. Opportunity 
is given to personalise the flat with your own furniture. The home is 
wheelchair accessible and there is a passenger lift to the first floor.

Neale Court is also connected to an adjoining Day Centre, which provides 
a range of activities.

Accommodation Facilities
• 23 Single Self Contained Flats
• Wheel Chair Access
• Personal Lounge
• Fitted Kitchen with Fridge
• Shower, Wash Hand Basin and WC
• Bed Area / Bedroom
• Built in Cupboard
• Small Safe

Communal Facilities
• Comfortable Lounge/Conservatory
• Dining Room
• Assisted Bathrooms
• Payphone
• Laundry Service
• Attractive Gardens
• Care available 24 hours a day
• Internal Call System
• Mobility Scooter Storage

‘I cannot praise the staff highly enough – their commitment is outstanding.’

P
age 60



Care Homes         11

C
are H

om
es

Eccleshare Court, Lincoln
Situated in the South of Lincoln close to Hartsholme Country 
Park and with easy access to the Lincoln bypass, Eccleshare Court 
was purpose built in 1989, 1996 and refurbished in 2006. Split 
between two buildings, 1-39 and 40-64 together they provide 
Personal, Nursing and Short Term Care for older people. Care 
is coordinated by a team of staff serving both homes.

Within Eccleshare Court No 1-39, care is provided within 29 
single and 9 double self-contained flats on the ground and first 
floor. Each flat comprises of a personal lounge, fitted kitchen, 
private W.C, hand basin, shower and bed area with built in 
cupboard. Opportunity is given to personalise the flat with your 
own furniture. The home is wheelchair accessible and there is a 
passenger lift to the first floor.

Eccleshare Court is also connected to an adjoining Social 
Outreach Centre, which provides a hair salon, activities, library, 
shop and chiropodist.

At Eccleshare Court No 40-64, care is provided within 25 single 
rooms on the ground and first floor. Each room comprises of 
a private W.C, hand basin, shower and bed area with built in 
cupboard. Opportunity is given to personalise the room with 
your own furniture. The home is wheelchair accessible and 
there is a passenger lift to the first floor.

No 40-64 is within easy reach of the Social Outreach Centre.

‘I am writing in return to send my 
appreciation for the care of my Mother 
by the Staff of Eccleshare Court since 
she moved there after her stroke in 
1999, almost 12 years ago.

When my partner and I were in 
Eccleshare Court for 24 hours a day in 
her last 60 hours, we counted more than 
25 names  of different staff who were in 
her room and involved in her care during 
her final days so that she was never left 
alone.’ Mr W and Ms S

‘I can honestly say I felt humbled by the care and attention your 
staff gave mum. Every day they looked after her as if she was from 
their own family. The kindness shown to her, from everyone, Nurses, 
Care Workers, Catering, and Cleaning Staff was simply amazing.

It is impossible to name individuals as all of the people who helped 
my Mum were wonderful every day. Thank you all.’ Mr B

Eccleshare Court No 1-39 
Accommodation Facilities
• 29 Single Self Contained Flats
• 9 Double Self Contained Flats
• Wheel Chair Access
• Personal Lounge
• Fitted Kitchen with Fridge
• Shower, Wash Hand Basin and WC
• Bed Area / Bedroom
• Built in Cupboard
• Small Safe

Eccleshare Court No 40-64 
Accommodation Facilities
• 25 Single Rooms
• Wheel Chair Access
• Shower, Wash Hand Basin and WC
• Bedroom
• Built in Cupboard
• Small Safe

Communal Facilities
• Comfortable Lounges
• Dining Rooms
• Assisted Bathrooms
• Payphones
• Laundry Service
• Attractive Gardens
• Care available 24 hours a day
• Internal Call System
• Mobility Scooter Storage

P
age 61



Eccleshare & Ruckland Court Social 
Outreach Centres, Lincoln
Situated in the North and South of the City, our Social Outreach Centres are 
operated by Age UK, Lincoln who respond to the needs of Housebound Older 
People from within Lincoln and the surrounding villages.

Our purpose built centres provide social outreach and a full programme of 
activities and events including ‘Movement to Music’, Art Class, Games, Bingo and 
Wii Club.

Facilities include a Shop, Library, Hair Salon, Assisted Bathroom and a Restaurant 
providing a three course meal. Adapted vehicles with a passenger lift provide a 
door-to-door transport service.

Our team of qualified staff and volunteers are there to help you with basic care 
and support if this is required.

‘I thought I must write and say how helpful the Staff were 
when Frank was taken ill. The lady driver and young helper 
helped me to change him, put his pyjamas on and put 
him to bed. They really were superb while I waited for the 
doctor to arrive.’ Mrs E

Support Services
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s

12 Support Services

Day Outings
As a voluntary organisation, we rely upon the invaluable support from our teams of 
volunteers. Together they provide support with activities and work tirelessly to raise 
much needed funds towards the cost of providing specialised transport.  As a result, 
we offer a wide range of day outings throughout the year, preventing our tenants 
from becoming isolated and encouraging them to retain their independence.

P
age 62



Support Services       13

Support Services

‘Absolutely fantastic driver and support worker, explained all procedures and ensured I was in the flat safely.’

Hospital Transport Service
In partnership with NHS Lincolnshire Community Shared Services 
and Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation Trust, we provide a range 
of hospital transport services for older and vulnerable people from 
Lincoln County, Boston Pilgrim and Grantham Hospitals.

The aim of the service is to: 

• assist older people home or to an alternative care setting, 

• prevent late discharge from hospital, 

• prevent inappropriate admission into hospital via Accident and   
   Emergency and, 

• improve access to those waiting or in need of hospital care.

We work hand in hand with other voluntary organisations. 
Together, our team of qualified staff receive referrals and respond 
by ensuring that patients are transported as quickly and safely as 
possible, supported into their home, receive bread, tea, coffee, 
milk, sugar and an information pack free of charge.

Property & Maintenance Team
At LACE Housing, we are very proud of the Housing, Care and Support 
Services that we provide. That is why we are committed to maintain them to 
the highest standard. To do this, we employ our own ‘in house’ Property and 
Maintenance Team who respond to the repair, maintenance and improvement 
of our accommodation and services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

In the event that we need to use the services of another contractor, we only 
use contractors that have been formally approved and work in accordance 
with our agreed terms and conditions.

P
age 63



14 Housing, Care & Support Comparison Chart

H
ou

sin
g,

 C
ar

e 
&

 S
up

po
rt 

C
om

pa
ris

on
 C

ha
rt Housing, 

Care & 
Support 
Comparison 
Chart

Services Provided 

Personal Care ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓ ✓
Nursing Care ✓
Respite Care ✓ ✓ ✓
Meals ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓ ✓
Laundry ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓ ✓
Cleaning of Communal Areas ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Grounds Maintenance ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Window Cleaning ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Communal Heating/Lighting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Telecare/Emergency Call 
System

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Cleaning of Room ✓ ✓ ✓
Hairdressers ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓*

Council Tax ✓ N/A N/A N/A

Scooter Storage ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓* ✓ ✓ ✓
Access to Cable Television ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Access to Internet ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Convenience Shop ✓ ✓
Lift Access ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Car Park (Not allocated 
spaces)

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Communal Lounge ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
Guest Room ✓* ✓* ✓*

B
ri

ck
 K

iln
 P

la
ce

O
ls

en
 C

o
u

rt
 1

- 
38

W
o

rt
h

 C
o

u
rt

A
lm

o
n

d
 H

o
u

se

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

o
u

se

R
as

en
 H

o
u

se

M
id

d
le

 S
tr

ee
t

O
ls

en
 C

o
u

rt
 6

0 
- 

68

O
ls

en
 C

o
u

rt
 3

9 
- 

59

Se
w

el
l C

o
u

rt

R
u

ck
la

n
d

 C
o

u
rt

N
ea

le
 C

o
u

rt

Ec
cl

es
h

ar
e 

C
o

u
rt

* Service subject to additional charges

P
age 64



As we are sure that you can imagine, to provide such 
a wide range of services  requires the support of over 
280 staff and 50 volunteers. Together, we have the skills, 
knowledge and understanding required to ensure that 
those in our care receive a good quality of life and a high 
standard of living.

Who’s Who

Board of Management 
The organisation is managed by a voluntary Board of 
Management whose members represent such a breadth 
of knowledge and experience that they can appropriately 
perform the required governance role and contribute to the 
organisation’s aims and long term stability.

W
ho’s W

ho

Who’s Who       15

How to Apply
In the event that you require 
any further information or 
wish to be considered for 
any of the Housing, Care or 
Support Services provided, 
please contact Sam Nolan, 
our Housing Coordinator 
on Lincoln (01522) 
514444 or visit our website  
www.lacehousing.org.ukSam Nolan, Housing CoordinatorMembers of the Board of Management

Senior Management Team
The responsibility for the development of new services and 
day to day management falls upon the shoulders of our Senior 
Management Team, led by our Chief Executive, Nick Chambers 
and incorporating Philip Hobson, Director of Operations and 
Kevin White, Director of Finance.

Philip Hutchings, Chairman

P
age 65



Registered Office and Central Services

Lace House        
2 Olsen Rise        
Lincoln  LN2 4UZ

Tel 01522 514444       
Fax 01522 560689      
Email enquiries@lacehousing.org
www.lacehousing.org

How to 
Contact Us

Care Homes
Eccleshare Court No 1-39  
Tel 01522 695458

Eccleshare Court No 40-64  
Tel 01522 689400

Neale Court    
Tel 01522 682201

Ruckland Court   
Tel 01522 530217

Social Outreach Centres
Eccleshare Court    
Tel 01522 692806

Ruckland Court   
Tel 01522 519458

Extra Care
Brick Kiln Place   
Tel 01476 516358

Olsen Court    
Tel 01522 522458

Worth Court    
Tel 01778 423138 Sheltered Housing

Rasen House   
Tel 01522 522889

Olsen Court    
Tel 01522 522458

Almond House  
Tel 01522 514444

Richmond House  
Tel 01522 514444

Housing for Sale
Sewell Court   
Tel 01522 514444

Olsen Court    
Tel 01522 522458

Brick Kiln Place  
Tel 01476 516358

Registered under The Industrial & Provident Societies Act 1965 Reg No. 16677R, registered with the Tenant Services Authority Reg No. L0438 
and accepted as a Charity for tax purposes by the Inland Revenue under their Ref No. XN 17483.  VAT Registered No. 886 6889 31.

P
age 66



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 11.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	7. SHDC Corporate Asbestos Policy 2016
	Appendix A

	8. Delivery of Extra Care Housing at Kings Road, Spalding
	Appendix 2 - Extra Care Housing Report
	Appendix 3 - Extra Care Housing Report
	Appendix 4 - Extra Care Housing Report

	11. Delivery of Extra Care Housing at Kings Road, Spalding - Appendix 5

